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          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning,

          3  Commissioner.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Good

          5  morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This is part B

          7  of our hearing on the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2000

          8  January Financial Plan and earlier today we had a

          9  hearing with Commissioner Miele of the Department of

         10  Environmental Protection, and we will continue with

         11  the other agency under the jurisdiction of this

         12  Committee, namely the Department of Sanitation, ably

         13  represented by Acting Commissioner Michael

         14  Carpinello.

         15                 Commissioner Carpinello, it is nice

         16  to have you here. Would you identify yourself and

         17  your compatriots or associates, fellow travelers?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: My

         19  name is Michael Carpinello, Acting Commissioner.

         20                 To my right is Deputy Commissioner

         21  Steve Lawitts, the Deputy Commissioner for Financial

         22  Matters and Administration. To my immediate left is

         23  Deputy Commissioner Martha Hirst for Solid Waste,

         24  and to my far left is Deputy Commissioner Jerry

         25  Della Corte, who is responsible for Support
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          2  Operations.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

          4  please proceed. I am sure you know the cast of

          5  characters on this side.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

          7  I do.

          8                 Good morning, Chairman Michels,

          9  Chairman Berman, and members of the Committee of

         10  Environmental Protection and Finance. I am Michael

         11  Carpinello, Acting Commissioner of the Department of

         12  Sanitation. I am here today with Deputy Commissioner

         13  Martha Hirst, Jerry Della Corte, Steve Lawitts, to

         14  answer your questions regarding the Department's

         15  portion of the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2000 January

         16  Financial Plan.

         17                 The Financial Plan for Fiscal Year

         18  2000 reflects several positive developments related

         19  to the City's Solid Waste Management Program.

         20                 The Department will award short-term

         21  contracts to private vendors to receive, transfer

         22  and export Department-managed refuse for Manhattan,

         23  Queens and Staten Island in Fiscal Year 2000.

         24                 The City is currently exporting 1,900

         25  tons per day from the Bronx and 2,400 tons a day
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          2  from Brooklyn. Beginning in March 1999, the

          3  Department will phase in the expansion of the weekly

          4  collection of recyclable materials Citywide.

          5                 The Department will complete the

          6  Citywide expansion by April 2000. And in the fall

          7  the Department will expand its leaf and yard waste

          8  composting program by adding all 14 community boards

          9  in Queens to the three Staten Island districts, 12

         10  Brooklyn districts and five Bronx districts already

         11  in the program.

         12                 The January Financial Plan for Fiscal

         13  Year 2000 allocates $787 million to the Department.

         14                 In addition to funding the core

         15  public services provided by the Department, some of

         16  the programmatic changes include:

         17                 - hiring additional sanitation

         18  workers to accomplish the phase-in of weekly

         19  collection of recyclable materials Citywide,

         20  resulting in reduced overtime costs.

         21                 - increasing enforcement activity in

         22  recycling health and sanitation areas of compliance.

         23                 I am pleased to report that during

         24  the past year, the Department continued to broaden

         25  the scope of the recycling program. At the end of
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          2  January 1999, nearly one and a half years since the

          3  Department completed a major expansion of its

          4  curbside recycling programs to include mixed paper

          5  and household metal collection citywide, 19.2

          6  percent of the curbside waste stream was diverted

          7  for recycling, compared to a 17.7 citywide diversion

          8  rate of one year ago.

          9                 Since the Department expanded its

         10  recycling collection program by requiring residents

         11  to place additional materials, including household

         12  bulk metal items and mixed paper out for Department

         13  collection, the percentage of materials from the

         14  waste stream targeted for recycling has increased

         15  from 30 percent to more than 40 percent.

         16                 In the fall of 1998, the Department

         17  launched an intensive recycling media campaign. The

         18  campaign, which began October 5th and continued

         19  through December 1998, included broadcast on network

         20  and cable television stations, radio announcements

         21  and the placement of posters of bus shelters, subway

         22  stations and storefronts.

         23                 The campaign encouraged recycling and

         24  reinforced which materials the Department collects

         25  at curbside, with an emphasis on plastic materials.
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          2                 By continuing its intensive public

          3  education and outreach campaign, the Department

          4  expects residential recycling diversion to grow in

          5  the coming years.

          6                 As a follow-up, the recycling

          7  seminars for building superintendents held at Shea

          8  and Yankee Stadium in 1998, the Department conducted

          9  another seminar in December of 1998 at a special

         10  meeting of the union representing building

         11  superintendents of the Bronx and Upper Manhattan.

         12                 Approximately 400 building

         13  superintendents attended this seminar, which was

         14  part of the Department's intensive outreach efforts

         15  to gain more cooperation from them.

         16                 The Department is also continuing an

         17  ongoing pilot outreach program in the 23 lowest

         18  recycling diversion districts Citywide.

         19                 In this pilot program the Department

         20  focuses its outreach on education efforts on local

         21  organizations and institutions, parochial and

         22  private schools and multi-unit buildings.

         23                 An important feature of this pilot

         24  includes the distribution of updated recycling

         25  outreach materials in several different languages.
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          2                 In April 1999, the Department expects

          3  to launch a reuse hot line pilot program to promote

          4  the reuse of second-hand goods. City residents will

          5  be able to call the hot line to learn about

          6  organizations that buy, sell and accept second-hand

          7  goods for reuse.

          8                 A prototype version of the hot line

          9  was tested in focus groups, about users and

         10  listeners in June 1998, and a narrative and menu

         11  system of the hot line are currently being refined.

         12                 Another focus of the project is to be

         13  expanded to expand the listings and develop a

         14  marketing plan.

         15                 By Fall 1999, the Department expects

         16  to complete the expansion of its special waste

         17  recycling program which will feature one special

         18  waste collection site in each borough. A contractor

         19  will be responsible for removing and recycling or

         20  disposing of special wastes, including motor oil

         21  filters, transmission fluid, automobile and

         22  household batteries, latex paint, florescent

         23  lightbulbs and thermostats.

         24                 In December of 1998, the Department

         25  implemented the first phase of its Citywide program
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          2  to recover chlorofluorocarbons, CFC, from appliances

          3  in the Bronx.

          4                 During the first nine weeks of the

          5  program the Department had appointments to service

          6  1,763 appliances based on telephone requests from

          7  residents who contacted the Bronx Sanitation Borough

          8  Office.

          9                 Of this total, 58 percent of the

         10  scheduled stops either had no appliances at the

         11  appointed locations, or the appliances had no CFCs.

         12  Also in December 1998, the Department commenced CFC

         13  recovery of appliances left at its self-help bulk

         14  sites throughout the City.

         15                 The recovery of CFCs is accomplished

         16  by specially trained sanitation workers. The

         17  Department plans to expand its CFC recovery program

         18  to Manhattan later this month.

         19                 The City continues to experience an

         20  unprecedented level of street cleanliness. In the

         21  first half of Fiscal 1998, 85.9 percent of the

         22  City's streets were rated acceptably clean as

         23  compared to 84.3 percent during the same period in

         24  Fiscal '98.

         25                 Also, during the first half of Fiscal
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          2  '99, no single district anywhere in the City was

          3  classified as dirty.

          4                 In January 1999, 87.9 percent of the

          5  streets were rated exceptionally clean, the second

          6  highest monthly rating ever in the 25-year history

          7  of the City's Score Card Rating Program.

          8                 Factors contributing to the City's

          9  unprecedented street cleanliness include the

         10  Department's aggressive cleaning management

         11  strategies, improved coordinated cleaning efforts

         12  with various City agencies, and the assignment of an

         13  average of 420 work experience participants to

         14  street cleaning duties each work day.

         15                 The Department has hired 53 WEP

         16  participants for full-time entry level clerical

         17  vacancies.

         18                 Eleven of those who were hired have

         19  already demonstrated the ability to advance and have

         20  been promoted to the next clerical level.

         21                 The January Financial Plan represents

         22  a balanced approach that allows the Department to

         23  meet its allocated funding targets, continue to

         24  deliver quality core services to the public and

         25  address its highest solid waste management planning
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          2  priority needs.

          3                 My staff and I will be happy now to

          4  answer your questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

          6  thank you very much. It was a very interesting

          7  statement, very much to the point, you cut to the

          8  quick.

          9                 The first thing that occurs to me on

         10  the street cleanliness, I congratulate you for going

         11  to 85.9 percent, from 84.3 percent. But to your

         12  knowledge, has the Department of Operations --

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         14  Office of Operations?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Office of

         16  Operations, changed their methodology of rating at

         17  all?

         18                 In the sense that when we had a

         19  hearing on that some time ago, I don't know if you

         20  were here when we did that. But there was a lot of

         21  criticism based on an article that appeared in the

         22  New York Times that, number one, they don't rate the

         23  sidewalks, they only rate the streets; and that if

         24  there are too many cars on the street they eliminate

         25  that street from rating, and that the people who do
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          2  the ratings don't go out and get out of their cars

          3  to do the rating.

          4                 So, you know, that led us to be a

          5  little suspect as to how accurate the ratings are,

          6  and I don't know whether to your knowledge they have

          7  changed their methodology? And if in fact they have

          8  changed their methodology to do away with those what

          9  I consider to be errors, and you come up with these

         10  statistics, you ought to be doubly congratulated.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         12  first to try to answer your question, I am unaware

         13  that they have changed their methodology in the way

         14  they rate streets. It is my understanding that the

         15  methodology that the program was first based upon,

         16  the cornerstones of that program, are basically the

         17  same. But I guess the Mayor's Office of Operations

         18  would be in the best position to answer that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I know

         20  that.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: But

         22  the other part is, they do in fact rate the

         23  sidewalks. When we get the monthly reports, we get

         24  them not only for the streets but we do get them for

         25  the sidewalks, so we are able to determine the
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          2  amount of cleanliness for the sidewalks, and that

          3  helps us in our enforcement effort, as well as other

          4  programs that we have --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That may be

          6  true, but as I understand it, Operation Score Card

          7  doesn't rate sidewalks.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It

          9  does, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oh, they must

         11  have changed their methodology then.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: As

         13  far as I know, it has been that way for quite

         14  awhile, for many, many, many years. The reports that

         15  I have rate both the street, as well as the

         16  sidewalk.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I stand to be

         18  corrected.

         19                 Okay, very good. Department of

         20  Sanitation once again plans to eliminate

         21  supplemental refuse collections at the Board of

         22  Education in the New York City Housing Authority

         23  sites. This proposal will revert the frequency of

         24  refuse collection to that of the surrounding

         25  sanitation districts, and which would generate a
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          2  savings of $3.6 million in Fiscal '99, the out

          3  years.

          4                 Are we going through the usual dance

          5  that we go through, you eliminate the budget and

          6  then we end up putting it back in? But I have to

          7  assume that this is a serious proposal and the

          8  questions are based upon the seriousness of the

          9  proposal, not on the presumption that we always put

         10  it back in anyway.

         11                 However, why does the Administration

         12  continue to propose this service reduction year

         13  after year, knowing the detrimental impact it would

         14  have on these sites?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         16  starting with the Housing Authority, the Housing

         17  Authority has begun for some time now, I guess the

         18  last three years or so and has continued to build

         19  storage areas for their waste, and this has helped a

         20  lot in a number of ways. One is in controlling the

         21  amount of litter. So, they have been doing I think a

         22  better job at building these areas and allowing the

         23  material to be stored. That was a problem when they

         24  didn't have these areas --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I remember that,
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          2  because they were built without sufficient storage

          3  areas.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: And

          5  as a result it warranted at that time the

          6  consideration of giving it additional service. But

          7  since more and more of these Housing Authorities are

          8  building these storage areas, we feel that they are

          9  able to store their material, because right down the

         10  block or right around the corner there is a large

         11  private apartment house that is not getting that

         12  extra service, it has a number of families living

         13  within those large apartment houses, and they only

         14  get the frequency of collection that the entire

         15  community board gets, whether it be two or three

         16  times.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might remind

         18  you that this same proposal was made even before

         19  they had sufficient storage areas, so this is not a

         20  new proposal. So, it is good hear that now that

         21  perhaps you can get away with it, but before we were

         22  here it didn't have no storage areas and you are

         23  still proposing the cuts. Okay.

         24                 So, what about the schools? We know

         25  they don't have any storage areas.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          3  some of the schools may not have built a storage

          4  area, but they will have areas somewhere. Not all of

          5  them have the same amount of storage area but some

          6  have more than others.

          7                 But we feel that the school also,

          8  given the frequency of collection that the community

          9  board gets, that with proper handling and proper

         10  storage and purchasing enough containers to store

         11  their garbage that they generate, that they would be

         12  able to adequately handle the garbage as well as

         13  their neighbors do, who only get the same frequency

         14  as the rest of the community.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might say that

         16  we disagree, we have always disagreed, and it would

         17  almost serve the agency right if we didn't add this

         18  money back into the budget and we called your bluff

         19  and made you put it back in and do it yourself.

         20  Because it seems to me this is something that should

         21  be done.

         22                 Okay, as part of the Fiscal '99

         23  adopted budget, the City Council restored funding to

         24  special school construction for the first six months

         25  of this year.  The Department will continue funding
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          2  for the last six months of this year, providing

          3  schools with supplemental collections five days a

          4  week. The funding initiative will cost 2.120,

          5  2,120,000 in Fiscal '99; could the Department

          6  explain why it would continue to fund special school

          7  collections in the last six months of '99, once

          8  again to eliminate the school collections of the

          9  Board of Education facilities in Fiscal 2000 and the

         10  outyears, that's just pointing out the other

         11  inconsistency.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         13  I think that the funding that for the last half of

         14  this fiscal year, I mean there was monies available

         15  to do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You made the

         17  monies available.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: In

         19  the coming fiscal year, you know, it is uncertain as

         20  to what, if any, shortfalls might exist. So, I think

         21  it is prudent we are asked, the agencies ask to look

         22  for ways to save money, that you look in those areas

         23  that you think will have the least impact on both

         24  the residents in the communities.

         25                 Because keeping in mind that prior to
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          2  this additional collection service ever being in

          3  effect, schools were only getting what the

          4  surrounding communities were getting.

          5                 And also I think --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's why we

          7  changed it, because it turned out the schools were

          8  dirty, there were a lot of problems with the rodents

          9  and vermin, there was a reason for changing it. But,

         10  you know, let me continue on this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And the

         12  population is growing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Excuse me?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And the

         15  population is growing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, the

         17  population. Schools are much more crowded, as a

         18  matter of fact, as Mr. Robles rightfully adds.

         19                 As part of the terms and conditions

         20  for Fiscal '99, the Council directed at least one of

         21  the supplemental collections per week be devoted to

         22  recycling pick-ups to assure all schools get their

         23  recyclables collected at least once each week; has

         24  this occurred in Fiscal Year '99? Have we done this?

         25  One of those pick-ups is a recycling pick-up? That
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          2  was a term and condition, have we complied with the

          3  term and condition?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Only

          5  those schools that are in weekly recycling areas get

          6  the once a week collection. Those schools that are

          7  in alternate week collections, which are 41

          8  districts get the every two weeks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you are not

         10  complying with the terms and conditions, okay.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I am

         12  unaware, Mr. Chairman, of the terms and conditions

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, well, that

         15  is the other problem, you are not made aware of it.

         16                 We will get you the terms and

         17  conditions. The Finance staff will get you those

         18  terms and conditions, but that was one of the terms

         19  and conditions that we put in there.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Just

         21  to add to that, I was under the impression that when

         22  the budget was modified with the City Council, that

         23  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We didn't remove

         25  any terms and conditions. That was a budget mod.
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          2  That was taken out, is that what you are saying?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

          4  it was my understanding that when the budget was

          5  modified with the City Council, that there was an

          6  understanding or an agreement with the City Council

          7  on the terms and conditions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Who gave you

          9  that understanding?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, that is not

         11  an understanding, that is a misunderstanding.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         13  will have to look into it then.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we never

         15  modified that terms and condition, that was a very

         16  important issue for us.

         17                 Mr. Leffler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you.

         19                 First of all, one of the significant

         20  items in your budget to some people is often snow

         21  removal, and we are in March now and I would like to

         22  congratulate you on the fine job you have done

         23  dealing with the snow. I assume it is the Mayor's

         24  direct pipeline that deserves the credit.

         25                 One of the budget issues for years
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          2  has been the recycling budget and what you are going

          3  to do with recycling. I think under the applicable

          4  court order you have to do 3,400 tons per day of

          5  recycling as of July 14th, 1999; are you going to

          6  meet that legal requirement?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

          8  right now are recycling about 2,000 tons a day, and

          9  it is unlikely by July, which is just a few months

         10  away, that we will attain that target.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Particularly

         12  since you have been close to 2,000 for many years

         13  now. I mean, that would be a quantum leap of the

         14  sort that you haven't been able to do since about

         15  1991.

         16                 So, what are you going to do? Because

         17  you have litigated this and litigated this and now

         18  this is, you know, a court order.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         20  I think we have always taken the position that said

         21  that these targets were extremely difficult, if not

         22  impossible to meet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: But the judge

         24  said that they were legal requirements.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The
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          2  Council and the Mayor a few months ago agreed on

          3  implementing weekly recycling, and I am hopeful that

          4  once we implement that program, that that will begin

          5  to show an increase in the diversion rate and

          6  hopefully get us a little closer to that target. But

          7  I think we have always taken a position that that is

          8  an extremely, extremely aggressive and difficult

          9  target to meet, but we will continue to try to meet

         10  it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: But what is

         12  your specific strategy and budget to implement the

         13  strategy that would give us confidence that having

         14  gone from like 1,500 tons per day to 2,000 tons per

         15  day in the last nine years, you are going to now in

         16  five months go up to 3,400 tons a day.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         18  a couple of things. We are going to continue on the

         19  outreach that we have been doing. We are going to

         20  have a more aggressive enforcement effort now that

         21  we are going citywide. And some of the issues that

         22  were raised when people were getting every other

         23  week the storage problems, as we implement the

         24  weekly collection, hopefully those storage problems

         25  will minimize and we will have a more aggressive
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          2  summons issuance for those people who don't follow

          3  Local Law 19.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And are you

          5  going to do this with more people, or a different

          6  direction of your current enforcement --

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Different direction of our current recycling

          9  enforcement personnel, as well as our supervisors.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I mean the

         11  law has given you the powers of enforcement for

         12  years, and it sounds to me like what you are saying

         13  is now you are going to tell the people that you

         14  really mean it.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         16  if you recall, we implemented, we phased in the

         17  recycling program borough by borough and then

         18  materials, and every time we added a new material we

         19  would have a period of time where we allowed the

         20  public to get acquainted with the new materials. We

         21  went from newspapers to mixed paper, and when you

         22  are adding shoeboxes and cereal boxes, to give the

         23  people in the residence an opportunity in those

         24  areas where we expanded it, instead of coming down

         25  hard and giving them summonses we allowed a period
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          2  maybe four months or six months, let them get

          3  acquainted with the new products and then have an

          4  enforcement with summonses, actual summonses.

          5                 Now that we are Citywide, with all

          6  the entire 59 community boards, recycling the same

          7  type of materials, no one does it or should be doing

          8  it any differently than the next person, and now

          9  that we are going to weekly recycling, I think that

         10  we are doing, we are trying to do everything to

         11  maximize the recycling effort, and now enforcement

         12  should be done on a more aggressive basis and we

         13  intend to do that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And when will

         15  that stepped up enforcement begin?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Actually we have already started to do it. But as

         18  far as budgetarily, it starts July 1st.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I see.

         20                 Well, you know, my own sense is that

         21  considering the difficulties that we have had with

         22  respect to the export of waste and the closure of

         23  Freshkills, I don't see a sense that the recycling

         24  law requirements are in fact going to be met on July

         25  14th. You know, I think you are going to basically
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          2  be directing the current personnel to step up

          3  enforcement, and I think that may produce some more

          4  compliance, but not the sort of compliance that will

          5  get anywhere near the requirement that you contested

          6  for years and belatedly agreed to accept.

          7                 One of the things I noticed that you

          8  are doing is expanding the composting, the leaf

          9  collection program, the yard waste collection

         10  program; isn't that right?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Do you have

         14  composting facilities that will be able to process

         15  the increased yard waste collection?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We,

         17  working with the Parks Department, when we went to

         18  Brooklyn last year, working with the Parks

         19  Department we identified a site in Canarsie,

         20  Brooklyn, that we used to compost the leaves that we

         21  collected from the 12 districts in Brooklyn, and we

         22  will be working with them again this year to

         23  identify a site in Queens so that when we start in

         24  the fall collecting leaves, that we will have a spot

         25  to work with.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And that will

          3  be sufficient for all of the expansion you think?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

          5  think so, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay. Because

          7  it seems to me that you are planning to

          8  significantly step up the yard waste collection, are

          9  you not?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Are

         11  you talking about yard waste?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Or

         14  leaves? Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay.

         16                 The peg program here calls for a

         17  million dollar saving from special litter basket

         18  collection. That is different from the items the

         19  Chairman referred to, is it not? This is the Sunday

         20  collection, the special litter basket collection?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         22  supplemental basket collection, the reduction that

         23  we put in is a million dollars, and it is going to

         24  reduce the additional basket collection that was in

         25  effect prior to the cut. There was 66 basket trucks
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          2  prior to collection -- prior to the cut, and this

          3  will reduce it down to about 28 basket trucks a

          4  week.

          5                 So, this million dollar reduction

          6  will reduce the basket collections by about 36

          7  basket trucks a week.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And basically

          9  Sunday pick-up is that?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It is

         11  all week long.

         12                 Most of it is on Sunday, because

         13  during the week we have our regular forces that pick

         14  up the baskets. On Sundays, when we got this

         15  additional money, most of that additional basket

         16  collection was on Sundays. So, the reduction will

         17  be, most of it will be on Sundays, but there will

         18  still be some on Sundays.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And that is

         20  outside of Manhattan it says in the --

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  Correct. Because Manhattan, in their based

         23  allocation had sufficient basket collections.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You know,

         25  other boroughs have problems with Sunday pile-ups
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          2  and litter baskets as well. We have found in the

          3  Council year after year that there is a need for

          4  these additional collections. Unless you give this

          5  some convincing case that there is not a need, it

          6  seems to me that proposing a savings here is not

          7  convincing.

          8                 Why should we be convinced that we

          9  can get along without these collections when in the

         10  past we found that they were needed?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         12  I think two things: One is, I think prior to the

         13  monies being put in the budget for the additional

         14  collection, I think that the collection service for

         15  baskets was good. I think the money made it better.

         16  But going back, I think the service is still good.

         17                 Also, from Memorial Day to Labor Day,

         18  we put on Citywide an additional 21 basket trucks a

         19  week to service those areas, what we call the beach

         20  areas, in Brooklyn it is Coney Island, in the Bronx

         21  it is Orchard Beach, and in the various places

         22  around the City when the beaches become more

         23  utilized, we put out 21 additional basket trucks

         24  from Memorial Day to Labor Day.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I think this
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          2  is something that the Council will look at but, you

          3  know, I think that there has been a need for these

          4  additional collection trucks, and in a year where we

          5  are rolling over something like, if I remember, it

          6  is about one and a half billion dollars into the

          7  next year's budget, it seems to me that having this

          8  money this year, it is something, you know, well

          9  spent.

         10                 There is nothing worse -- well, I

         11  shouldn't say nothing worse -- but it is pretty poor

         12  to have these overflowing litter baskets.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         14  think I might also add, we have an adopt a basket

         15  program and that has been growing. We have over 800

         16  now, stores who have adopted baskets, who bag the

         17  garbage, put it out for collection, and that has

         18  helped also.

         19                 So, while this reduction in basket

         20  collection that we are proposing to put into the

         21  budget, there are other things that help to

         22  supplement that cut.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I have two

         24  other areas.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why don't you
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          2  take a second round.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Can I just

          4  finish up?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you didn't

          6  ask the question, how will this affect cleanliness?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: He said, but

          8  I don't think it is really --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In his opinion.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: We would like

         11  to see the --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How is this

         13  going to affect cleanliness?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         15  think it will have a minimal affect on the

         16  cleanliness.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which direction?

         18  Minimal yes, minimal no?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No, I

         20  mean right now the Score Card is at an all-time high

         21  and these basket collections, these reduction basket

         22  collections will have a minimal, if any, effect on

         23  the Score Card.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: By the way, I

         25  want to mention that we are joined by our newest
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          2  Council Member, Cris Quinn.

          3                 Welcome. Welcome to the Committee on

          4  Environmental Protection. It is always a pleasure to

          5  have you here.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. And

          7  she picked Mr. Robles to sit next to, which is very

          8  astute on her part.

          9                 Mr. Sabini.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 I will continue on the basket

         13  collections, since that is where we are at.

         14                 Commissioner, I have to tell you that

         15  even with the additional money, and the additional

         16  money is a lower additional amount than we had had

         17  in at least one past year, the baskets are still

         18  overflowing in parts of Queens, and baskets

         19  overflowing make for essentially dirtier

         20  neighborhoods because then the overflow winds up on

         21  the corner and you know and I know the garbage

         22  version of the broken window theory, if you throw

         23  garbage on a street corner, more people think that

         24  is where the garbage belongs and the pile gets

         25  higher and higher. We could do that here, we could
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          2  probably do that in this room.

          3                 In terms of adopt a basket, many of

          4  our merchants sneak garbage into those baskets, that

          5  is not adopting a basket, they are adopting it as

          6  their refuse collection, and I will tell you that we

          7  are going to pursue, or at least I am, keeping this

          8  additional money in the budget because areas like

          9  the areas I represent cannot afford to have that cut

         10  anymore, and we need more than what we've got.

         11                 My baskets still overflow daily,

         12  despite the best efforts of us and your agency they

         13  still overflow daily. I need more than what is spent

         14  now, not less, and I suspect that that is shared by

         15  others that represent shopping districts.

         16                 You answer on the Board of Ed

         17  collections trouble me a little. The fact of the

         18  matter is, and I testified yesterday at the Board of

         19  Ed hearing on the five-year capital plan, and we

         20  increase the number of students in this City in our

         21  school system by about 15,000 a year, that means

         22  more garbage. And I don't know, in many areas of our

         23  City I don't know, I can't name schools that have

         24  athletic fields anymore or open space because so

         25  many additions and portables and temporary
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          2  classrooms have been added to the footprint of the

          3  school to make storage space nil.

          4                 So, we have less space and more

          5  students, which means I believe that supplemental

          6  pick-ups are essential.

          7                 Newtown High School, for example, is

          8  projected to go totally double session within the

          9  next two years. In other words, they will start

         10  classes at 7:00 in the morning, and end classes

         11  probably at 7:00 at night, with all of the ancillary

         12  services that are required from that, in other words

         13  school will be at double capacity, and the garbage

         14  has to be stored somewhere and the custodians are

         15  running out of room to store it.

         16                 Since the Department has spent, much

         17  like the basket collection, the additional money

         18  this year, why would you think you don't need it

         19  next year? Especially with the number of students

         20  increasing?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         22  again, those students when they come to school, I am

         23  assuming that those numbers are correct, those

         24  15,000, but when they leave the school they go back

         25  to their homes and apartment houses and I am
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          2  assuming that they generate more refuse and garbage

          3  there, but those houses and those apartments aren't

          4  getting any additional, collection frequency isn't

          5  increasing.

          6                 I think, what I think has to happen

          7  is that the schools have to designate storage areas

          8  for this increase, just the way the apartment houses

          9  that these children when they go back to live, or

         10  the homes whenever they go back to live, they have

         11  to somehow or another make arrangements for the

         12  additional garbage storage that needs to be done.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: When they are

         14  at home, the intensity of the population is

         15  dispersed, so you are right there are just as many

         16  people living at home, but they all eat lunch in the

         17  same building, and that means that 1,400, 1,600 milk

         18  containers, 1,600 juice containers, are sitting

         19  around. Maybe what the Department has to do is to

         20  develop a program working with the school custodians

         21  to find special machinery to either compact the

         22  recyclables so they are still usable for your

         23  program or increase the pick up. Because the fact is

         24  you take a school like PS 89 or PS 69, PS 89 in

         25  Elmhurst, PS 69 in Jackson Heights, there is no more
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          2  open space next to the school, every inch has been

          3  taken, and within the school every inch has been

          4  taken. Storage space is next to nil. There are kids

          5  learning in the cafeterias. So, I don't know that

          6  reducing the collection helps matters. It hurts

          7  matters, in my opinion.

          8                 But, you know, if you are saying that

          9  they are going to have to make do, we will have to

         10  visit that when we pass our final budget. But if you

         11  are right, then there has to be some give somewhere,

         12  you have to have some sort of program to have the

         13  custodians better manage the waste on site because

         14  they are not getting it done now, they feel helpless

         15  on this matter. They don't have the space and maybe

         16  if there is special equipment that needs to be

         17  purchased, then maybe it should be purchased. Or

         18  maybe if there were special techniques that they can

         19  use, maybe it should be taught to them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Excuse me, Mr.

         21  Sabini.

         22                 Let me just say this to you,

         23  Commissioner, and I think I can speak for the

         24  Council, there is a consensus here in the Council.

         25  At a year when we are all concentrating on education
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          2  and we are really, from the state, the federal and

          3  the City levels where we are trying to make the

          4  schools much more effective and the students more

          5  effective, I think it sends the wrong message that

          6  instead of trying to help the schools and make the

          7  schools cleaner, we are doing things which act

          8  against that.

          9                 I think this Council is going to pay

         10  very, very quick attention to this issue, and we are

         11  going to make sure, I know I speak for myself and

         12  members of this Council, we are going to make sure

         13  that this money is restored and that there should be

         14  a certain amount of commitment on the part of the

         15  Administration which we want to see to keep these

         16  schools clean and to give them a decent environment

         17  to learn in. We can't teach them here, we have got

         18  to make sure the teachers do their job, our job here

         19  is to make sure there is a clean environment there,

         20  and I know you feel the same way. I know this is the

         21  budget they handed you, but the fact of the matter

         22  is we are not satisfied with it and we are going to

         23  see to it that these collections are added and

         24  anything else that has to be done to make the

         25  schools cleaner we are going to do also.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          3  just to add one last point, I think there is no one

          4  entity that this Department hasn't spent more effort

          5  and more time and more money in trying to encourage

          6  the people to recycle more than the Board of

          7  Education.

          8                 And just two points: One is that, on

          9  the one hand when you give more garbage collections,

         10  it is somewhat, it could be, it could be a

         11  disincentive to recycle because you know that, well

         12  they are going to pick up my garbage --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know I did

         14  speak about adding a collection for recycling, for

         15  recyclable materials, I did talk about that earlier.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I said one of

         19  those collections should be recyclables. And we

         20  also, and I know when I attended, last year with

         21  Martha Hirst, a seminar that you did with the Board

         22  of Education to try to introduce recycling into the

         23  curriculum, because we think our ambassadors are the

         24  children sitting in there, to go home and teach

         25  people to recycle. And I think that also has to be
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          2  done in the schools. And as an example, the schools

          3  are not going to recycle, then we never can expect

          4  these kids to go home and deliver the message while

          5  they are doing it in school, why can't we do it at

          6  home.  So, you got us on the right target here. We

          7  think we ought to be doing much more recycling and

          8  we think there are much more recyclable materials,

          9  recyclable materials in school then are presently

         10  being recycled and we think they should do a better

         11  job, and that we are all in agreement with.

         12                 But our job also, where there is

         13  garbage, and there is a possibility of vermin and

         14  other problems there, we want that picked up.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         16  just met with the Board of Education, their general

         17  counsel and other staff, just last week in my office

         18  on this very subject to encourage the schools. And

         19  they are willing to work with us to get the

         20  custodians and the principals who are essentially

         21  the CEO of the schools, they are the ones that are

         22  charged, and they are the boss of the custodian, to

         23  get them to focus more on recycling.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Include in the

         25  curriculum? Because I know I have that tape that you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2  did, the videotape, to put it into the curriculum,

          3  teachers of sciences or something --

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          5  Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To let the kids

          7  know there is a rationale to this.

          8                 Was that included in your

          9  conversations with your principals?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         11  it was.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         13                 Martha, I assume that you agree with

         14  me on this.

         15                 Mr. Sabini, I interrupted you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That's okay.

         17                 Just one quick question getting back

         18  to basket collection. If you do this reduction, do

         19  you anticipate a reduction in headcount, since the

         20  additional money was supposed to be just overtime?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: This

         22  was overtime. It won't reduce the headcount, it will

         23  reduce, spending less overtime.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: All right. So

         25  that the number of people assigned to basket
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          2  collection teams won't decrease?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

          4  number of people assigned will decrease, absolutely.

          5  We are going to go from 66 trucks a week down to 28,

          6  so there will be fewer people assigned specifically

          7  to basket question.

          8                 The equivalent, if you will, hiring

          9  people to do this additional work, is about 19

         10  people, but since it is being done on overtime, it

         11  is just a million dollars less in overtime will be

         12  spent.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: On the

         14  anti-graffiti pilot project that you initiated in

         15  1998, cost an additional $88,000 in Fiscal '99, and

         16  Fiscal '00 or whatever we are going to call it these

         17  days, and the outyears for the deployment of two

         18  full-time workers; is this allocation related to the

         19  operation of this anti-graffiti vehicle that you

         20  have?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         22  it is.

         23                 The Anti-Graffiti Program is part of

         24  a Citywide effort that is coordinated through the

         25  Mayor's Community Assistance Unit, and the
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          2  Department of Sanitation, with its anti-graffiti

          3  truck, along with other City agencies, form a

          4  Citywide task force, so those two --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I believe you

          6  were at PS 7, near PS 7 in my district in Elmhurst

          7  recently with this with the Mayor. I wasn't invited

          8  of course, but that is not surprising.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: But

         10  we do go out to all five boroughs, and again, it is

         11  coordinated through the Mayor's Community Assistance

         12  Unit.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And it is

         14  deployed at CAU's request?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: At

         16  their request, as well as, we get from community

         17  boards, from elected officials, from our own

         18  observations of seeing graffiti on some of the

         19  areas, so it is done not only through the Community

         20  Assistance Unit but it is coordinated with other

         21  City agencies. But on our own, through any request

         22  we get we will go out and do it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And this truck

         24  has even the capacity I believe to sense the color

         25  of the surface that the graffiti is on?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  That's correct. It has what is called a

          4  spectrometer, and it is just a disk that, you put it

          5  up against the wall that you want to color that

          6  hasn't been graffiti'd and it will give you a

          7  digital readout and it will tell you how much

          8  colorant you need to mix. And in the truck itself it

          9  has the apparatus to mix those colors. You can spray

         10  it, it has the ability to spray the paint on or the

         11  traditional roll on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: How much do

         13  these trucks cost?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: If

         15  you were to buy it new from a manufacturer about

         16  $90,000. The Department was able to build it itself

         17  with its own forces for about $44,000.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And do you

         19  anticipate getting any more?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         21  right now -- if the demand is there, we will look to

         22  do more, yes. But right now we seem to be able to

         23  keep up with the demand, the requests we get from

         24  various areas.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We are always
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          2  interested in savings and income to the City, and

          3  yet a line in the budget peaks some interest, the

          4  Department gains almost a million dollars from the

          5  federal government in a rebate for the costs

          6  associated with Operation Bravo, could you describe

          7  that to the Committee?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  Operation Bravo is police sponsored but multi-agency

         10  effort to provide security, in around the downtown

         11  area here. We have two Sanitation workers that man

         12  vehicles 24 hours a day, seven days a week, to guard

         13  the entrances around the federal court down here,

         14  and this money is monies that the Department spent

         15  in overtime and now the City has filed applications

         16  with the federal government to get reimbursed for

         17  monies that the City laid out for this overtime.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And could you

         19  describe for the Committee what those workers do and

         20  what the vehicles do?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         22  the workers basically stay in the vehicle and they

         23  will move that vehicle when there are deliveries to

         24  the prison.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What is the
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          2  vehicle?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It is

          4  either a salt spreader or a large dump truck.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: So they are in

          6  effect like human shields?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          8  the equipment, because it is heavy is used for that

          9  purpose.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And do we

         11  anticipate doing more of this?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  Excuse me?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Do we

         15  anticipate doing more of this?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: That

         17  would depend on what the Department's, the Police

         18  Department's needs are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I assume Mr.

         20  Hauer is coordinating this effort for the City?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         25  Robles.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

          3                 Good afternoon, Commissioner.

          4                 Let me perhaps before I get into the

          5  actual budget for the Year 2000, I want to do the

          6  same thing I had done before.

          7                 There is an upcoming budget mod in

          8  your agency in this fiscal year. Now, in the plan,

          9  as the Chairman was discussing, this plan takes out

         10  the garbage collection, the extra garbage collection

         11  at schools, and what I need you to perhaps enlighten

         12  us is, okay, every year, like the chair said, you

         13  take out, we put back, but somebody evaluates

         14  whether the need continues.

         15                 Now, based upon what you said, if the

         16  need is not there, then why in the budget mod that

         17  will be coming to us within the next two to three

         18  weeks, in the Department of Sanitation it has

         19  restored special school collection for six months,

         20  that is the other six months that we did not put in,

         21  and it is $2.1 million, that when the Mayor submits

         22  to us the budget mod, we will be restoring it.

         23                 Now, if in the last six months of the

         24  fiscal year that we did not put the money, you are

         25  now, because the Mayor proposes, we dispose, you are
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          2  asking for 2.1 to be put into the budget, then why

          3  are you taking out the next six months of the first

          4  six months of the fiscal year for the Year 2000, and

          5  you tell the Chairman that, well, you know, in

          6  public housing developments as an example -- and I

          7  would appreciate perhaps what we need since NYCHA

          8  seems to become independent when they want to be,

          9  maybe we should get how many of these so-called

         10  storages they have built, when I know that there is

         11  over 300 plus or better housing developments, I have

         12  11 and I will tell you not all 11 in my district has

         13  those storage areas.

         14                 And second, when it comes to the

         15  sanitation and the schools, which the chairman was

         16  correct, they are not building, as a matter of fact

         17  they are overcrowding and they are looking for space

         18  to build new schools or extensions, if you don't

         19  believe that there is a need for that, why are we

         20  taking it out in the Year 2000 when in this budget

         21  mod it is going to come before us in the next two

         22  weeks in the Finance Committee, we will be voting to

         23  restore 2.1? And I don't understand that.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         25  will try to answer it.
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          2                 There are all kinds of levels of

          3  service. One is a level that is good which is

          4  without this extra service, and then when you have

          5  monies available, as we do in this fiscal year, and

          6  you want to provide additional service, so you are

          7  going from a good level of service to a better level

          8  of service.

          9                 But given what uncertainties may be

         10  ahead in Fiscal Year 2000, because we were asked to

         11  look at areas that we can cut back and still provide

         12  a good level of service, this is the area that we

         13  looked at, and the schools and the NYCHA are areas

         14  that we feel, the other buildings in those community

         15  boards do not get extra service. Apartment houses

         16  don't get extra service.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me ask you

         18  a simple question.

         19                 Separate public buildings that we are

         20  responsible for. If those buildings that you are

         21  referring to which are private buildings have the

         22  audacity to put out garbage in front of their

         23  buildings without storing them, what would you do?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         25  would give them a summons.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right.

          3                 Yet, as Chairman of the Health

          4  Committee, we are bound to make sure that any health

          5  code is enforced. And since there is not going to be

          6  any storage of garbage in the schools, where do you

          7  think the schools are going to put the garbage?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          9  I am not convinced --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Sir, it's just

         11  a simple question. I am not blaming you.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         13  understand.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But as we deal

         15  with this issue, I mean I don't know, maybe it is

         16  me, when I go through my schools in my community

         17  district, especially in the evenings, because you

         18  know now we do have a breakfast program, we have a

         19  lunch program, and then we have beacons, there is

         20  garbage accumulated that may not be able to wait

         21  until the next time there is a pick-up. And in the

         22  schools, and again, I can only speak for my schools,

         23  I constantly drive around and see two kinds of

         24  garbage bags, the white ones, which is the regular

         25  garbage, and the blue ones. And my question is,
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          2  these are public buildings.

          3                 If we were private, you would be

          4  quick to issue summonses. Perhaps maybe for me to

          5  understand this issue, why don't you give the

          6  Chairman how many summonses have you given against

          7  the Board of Education or the Housing Authority for

          8  not carrying out the mandate of the law? Because my

          9  concern is, I see those rats, I see those roaches,

         10  and you know something, there are health issues that

         11  we cannot ignore.

         12                 Now, it is not a criticism towards

         13  you, but I repeat, if what you are saying is

         14  correct, then why are we putting $2.1 million in the

         15  last six months of the fiscal year, because there

         16  has to be a reason for it.

         17                 And I am not saying this to be

         18  combative or debate, but you know, sir, even my

         19  constituents are tired, they are saying to me why is

         20  it that if we did that, they are very quick to give

         21  us summonses like crazy, but when it comes to public

         22  buildings is HPD a good example, you know, and all

         23  these other public buildings, we tend to hesitate to

         24  implement the same law that you are quick to enforce

         25  on the private sector, and I say that respectfully.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Robles, I

          3  suggest you allow him to answer.

          4                 Do you have an answer to his

          5  question?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

          7                 Well, first of all, we do give

          8  summonses to the Board of Education.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Good.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We do

         11  give summonses.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Perhaps can

         13  you give me a list of the last fiscal year, since we

         14  are dealing with this, before we do the next one.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Sure.

         16  I would be happy to.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I would

         18  appreciate that.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: But

         20  we do give summonses to the Board of Education.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Again, on this

         22  budget mod, because I see again that we are putting

         23  $88,000 not this year, next year, in this budget mod

         24  for your painters for the Anti-Graffiti Program, and

         25  maybe I don't understand it, although it is supposed
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          2  to be I think two personnel.

          3                 You have trucks and you have two

          4  Sanitation workers. Now, again, explain to me,

          5  because forget about the Community Assistance Unit,

          6  let me tell you what my problem is, your failure to

          7  -- you have a capital budget item this year, next

          8  year, which runs about 44 percent of your capital

          9  budget for the purpose of Sanitation garages, you

         10  know, reconstruction, and I must tell you, North

         11  Brooklyn, I got three of them that I am still -- and

         12  every year, now it is six months, seven months, and

         13  nothing ha happened. I will tell you what I do see.

         14                 You got a graffiti program, before

         15  you become so munchie munchie with the Community

         16  Assistance Unit, why don't we start with our own

         17  trucks that are sitting constantly out in the

         18  street? And I see graffiti like crazy. And maybe

         19  people will be happy saying, you know, Councilman,

         20  you voted for $88,000 for the graffiti program, but

         21  at least Sanitation trucks that are left out in the

         22  street overnight don't have graffiti.

         23                 And before I go through a location,

         24  Commissioner, I am not happy with seeing your

         25  vehicles graffiti all over the place because they
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          2  happen to be left overnight in the street.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          4  quite honestly, Councilman, for over two years now

          5  the Department has a policy that no truck -- if you

          6  have seen a truck that has, one of our trucks that

          7  has graffiti on it, I would like to know about it,

          8  because I am unaware of any of our trucks that have

          9  graffiti.

         10                 We do not assign a truck, if it has

         11  graffiti on it, it doesn't go out that day.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That's fair

         13  enough.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         15  have no trucks that have graffiti on them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And since I

         17  know the big number on top, I will give you the

         18  number, the date, the time, absolutely.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         20  would appreciate that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: It is one hand

         22  washes the other, I don't want you to think that I

         23  always like to be critical.

         24                 Where are we with these Sanitation

         25  garages that we have been talking about? And I am
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          2  not aware in Community Board 1, 3, 4, they have been

          3  resolved. They have been in the budget. Every six

          4  months you come before the Land Use Committee

          5  because you are now leasing and so long as I am here

          6  to the Year 2001, I am going to give you six months

          7  and that is all you are going to get because I have

          8  been in the Council 14 years, Community Board 1, 3

          9  and 4 garages were in the budget before I became a

         10  Councilperson, it still has been done.

         11                 Can you give me a status on not only

         12  North Brooklyn, but if you have got 44 percent of

         13  your budget in the capital for these reconstruction,

         14  maybe you should tell me, enlighten me, how many

         15  have you done? How many are still left? Where are we

         16  on that?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I am

         18  going to ask Deputy Commissioner Martha Hirst to

         19  respond to your question.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST:

         21  Councilman, with respect to the first part of your

         22  question, the garages in your district, you will

         23  recall that we held an eminent domain hearing under

         24  the eminent domain procedures law as the first step

         25  toward condemning the site on Varrick Avenue that
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          2  would enable us to build facilities there. We were

          3  sued with respect to that process, and we have not

          4  been able to, pending the outcome of that litigation

          5  we have not been able to move forward with that

          6  site.

          7                 As you know, that is part and parcel

          8  of the whole game plan with respect to those several

          9  garages.

         10                 So, currently you are right, the

         11  status is as you have last heard it, we have not

         12  been able to advance that project pending the

         13  outcome of that litigation.

         14                 We would hope that that litigation

         15  would come out with a favorable outcome for the City

         16  and then we will proceed with the schedule that we

         17  had.

         18                 With respect to other garages, I will

         19  refer it to Commissioner Della Corte.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me just

         21  stick to that, because let me tell you what my

         22  problem is.

         23                 The original proposal, you are

         24  correct that I inherited, was for Community Board 1

         25  and 4. Somehow it was changed to 1 and 3, if you
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          2  recall we had a meeting.

          3                 I also reminded you in your office

          4  when Doherty was then Commissioner and you were

          5  First Deputy, that I can recall on Nostrand Avenue

          6  and Park Avenue a vacant lot which I was under the

          7  impression that was earmarked for Community Board

          8  3's garage. I must tell you that there is

          9  construction going on on that location and I don't

         10  believe it is for Sanitation.

         11                 Now, by the time we wait on, and my

         12  dilemma is that while originally the Varrick Street

         13  was 1 and 4, that may not be what happens when it

         14  comes to 1 an 4. And, again, there is where I have

         15  the problem. What garages are we talking about?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are

         17  talking about 1 and 4 at that site, and as you know,

         18  the difficulties of identifying sites in that

         19  community alternative sites, we have exhausted those

         20  discussions and with your help we identified

         21  alternatives that we thought would be desirable.

         22  That continues to be the preferable site and the

         23  City continues to want to advance that site, and we

         24  would put two garages there. We have discussed that,

         25  we would put the garages there if we need them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: How many

          3  garages globally, Citywide -- out of the 44 percent

          4  in your capital, how many garages have actually been

          5  done since you started in dealing with garages?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE:

          7  Since the early eighties we probably constructed

          8  about 13 new facilities.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And your goal

         10  is to construct how many?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: In

         12  the current ten-year program we have 17 new

         13  facilities, which encompass the 44 percent.

         14                 We expect to break ground on Queens 7

         15  garage in July, and we expect to break ground in

         16  Manhattan, 57th Street complex, the following July.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And my last

         18  question, if I may, Mr. Chairman, it may not be

         19  directly budget but let me ask you this:

         20                 With respect to those companies that

         21  you are contracting out to do solid waste removal, I

         22  keep seeing these letters from the Borough President

         23  of Brooklyn which alleges of violation of federal,

         24  state and local laws. Yet, I keep receiving for my

         25  comments on renewals of these facilities.
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          2                 Now, when Commissioner, the

          3  Commissioner of Environmental Protection was here, I

          4  asked the same question. Why is it as you deal with

          5  those renewals you ask for comment? Why don't you

          6  add to, for our purposes, when there are violations

          7  against these companies, as we deal with these

          8  companies that might be contracted out? You know, my

          9  area is one of those areas that you are looking at

         10  to contract out and there was a little scandal in

         11  between, or someone did not qualify and you did not

         12  do that short term.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Whatever.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: If you

         15  remember the hearings, Mr. Chairman?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         18                 Why don't you send us that

         19  information so that we make at least intelligent

         20  decisions not based upon where I am against you, but

         21  based upon facts if there are violations? Because if

         22  there are violations, why would I support a company

         23  to be in my community to serve the interests of the

         24  people?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: You
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          2  are talking about when transfer stations permit

          3  comes up for renewal?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That's right.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: And

          6  right now you are not getting that information?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No. I get a

          8  letter saying, oh, by the way, their renewal is up

          9  and we would appreciate hearing from you.

         10                 My point is, these are the companies

         11  that you are contracting out also to do other

         12  things, like waste management, but I see allegations

         13  of violation, how do I know that is true? I don't

         14  know it, but you do. According to Commissioner

         15  Miele, he says that when those violations go through

         16  the administrative process, that when any findings

         17  or any violations were opposed, that you, the

         18  Sanitation, so I should be getting that information

         19  from you, and he would give us the information from

         20  Environmental Protection.

         21                 My question is, when you send out

         22  those letters on the renewal, why don't you also

         23  include whether during that period of the license

         24  there has been any violations and any findings?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,
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          2  what he is asking is, whether or not you use VENDEX

          3  and these violations are on VENDEX?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

          5  the VENDEX is a check when before we even enter into

          6  a contract with a company --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: On a renewal you

          8  check VENDEX also, don't you?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         10  yes, we do. We check with the Trade Waste

         11  Commission, we check with a number of different

         12  groups. But let me just ask this question. Are you

         13  talking about violations, summonses they may have

         14  received for dust, leaving doors open, overvolume?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: If you ask my

         16  constituents in North Brooklyn, we want you out. But

         17  as a responsible elected official, somebody has to

         18  also stand up and say, look, I am ready to do my

         19  part, but they have to be good neighbors. When those

         20  neighbors care less and have the attitude, you don't

         21  like it? move, I have a problem. I mean, I don't

         22  have the luxury of moving out.

         23                 The point is, if they are going to be

         24  in a community and we regulate them and we give them

         25  a license, then who is responsible in making sure
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          2  that they are conforming to every regulation that

          3  governs? Whether it is Sanitation, whether it is

          4  Environmental Protection? That is why we have City

          5  agencies. That is my question.

          6                 During the Fiscal Year, or the

          7  calendar year, when the renewal comes up, why don't

          8  you also enlighten us whether there has been any

          9  outstanding violations?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         11  will look into that and get back to you, Councilman.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There may be a

         15  little bit of a dispute here. When you enter into

         16  contracts, which is not done through the agency, it

         17  is done under the City agency on Contracts, the

         18  VENDEX is something that is looked at, whether it is

         19  an original contract or a renewal contract; isn't

         20  that correct?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now the other

         24  question I have. But you do permitting of transfer

         25  stations, when you look to see if you should issue a
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          2  permit, do you also look in VENDEX to see what they

          3  do?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

          5  look at VENDEX, we look at -- again, we go to the

          6  Trade Waste Commission, there are a number of other

          7  outside --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Whether they are

          9  contracted with you are not, they come for a permit,

         10  you check them out?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         12  we do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you use all

         14  the available equipment, and that includes VENDEX?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         16  That's correct.

         17                 And not all transfer stations that

         18  get permits are transfer stations that we use. By

         19  and large most of them, there are 28 transfer

         20  stations that handle municipal solid waste, we just

         21  use three of them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Which are

         23  they?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: In

         25  Brooklyn it is a company called Waste Management --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That is my

          3  district. That's the point. The letters, allegedly

          4  the Borough President allegedly in saying in a

          5  letter to the Mayor, and he is alleging -- I mean, I

          6  am not going to join him saying it's true, and I am

          7  saying to you, if you have that information, what is

          8  the big thing for letting us know whether it is true

          9  or not?

         10                 I am sure you must have seen the

         11  letter, Commissioner?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Of

         13  course you see the letters.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right, I

         15  think he has answered your question.

         16                 But all of them, whether they do

         17  business or not which are permitted by you, you do

         18  look at VENDEX?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Oh,

         20  absolutely, on every one of them. On every one of

         21  them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

         23                 Okay, talking about transfer

         24  stations, Council Member Rodriguez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: What made
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          2  you think I was going to talk about transfer

          3  stations?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't know. A

          5  little birdie told me.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me

          7  thank you for coming here today.

          8                 Let me just ask an early quick

          9  question; how are we doing on the schedule to

         10  closing Freshkills, are we on time?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         12  are on schedule.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You are on

         14  schedule?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And the

         17  reason I ask that question was because I guess you

         18  guys came out in December with a plan to close it on

         19  time and the plan included I guess you want to call

         20  them EBUFs, I want to call them transfer stations,

         21  in Red Hook, Carteret in New Jersey, and I guess

         22  since then we have received, to say the least,

         23  opposition from some of the communities involved,

         24  including communities I guess that are going to wind

         25  up with ultimately with the landfills that are going
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          2  to wind up with the garbage.

          3                 And my question is, with all of those

          4  problems that I just mentioned to you, you still

          5  feel very confident in saying that Freshkills will

          6  close on time when everything is on schedule?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Good. I am

         10  glad somebody feels that way.

         11                 And there is some litigation going

         12  on, do you think it is going to have any impact on

         13  whether it closes on time?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Which

         15  litigation are you talking about?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Litigation

         17  from, with regard to the interim plan, litigation

         18  with regard to I guess -- is it the Environmental

         19  Justice Alliance or something that is doing --

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         21  only litigation that I am aware of is on the

         22  Brooklyn site that was brought by the Borough

         23  President in Brooklyn --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And this

         25  Councilman.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  Excuse me?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And this

          5  Councilman.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Right. Back in October, November of last year. And

          8  as I am sure you know, that the Judge, Judge

          9  Goldberg, had issued a preliminary order allowing us

         10  to export waste until he makes a final decision. And

         11  that the only one that I am aware of, of where a

         12  lawsuit is in place.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, it is

         14  just that, you know I want to say it again and I

         15  have said it all the time, that we need to come up

         16  with a plan that will close Freshkills on time, and

         17  for the Department of Sanitation or the

         18  Administration for that matter, to get into a battle

         19  with all of these different groups. Whatever type of

         20  battle that is, I don't know that it is going to be

         21  productive and it is going to accomplish the goal of

         22  closing it on time.

         23                 I want to be on record as saying it

         24  should close on time, and the fact that I entered

         25  into a lawsuit had nothing to do with that, it had
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          2  to do the fairness and equity of treating our

          3  communities, including the communities of Councilman

          4  Robles.

          5                 Now, you mentioned also in your

          6  testimony that you are currently exporting, I guess

          7  it would be 4,300 tons on an interim basis from the

          8  Bronx and from Brooklyn?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: About

         10  1,900 tons from the Bronx, and about 2,400 tons from

         11  Brooklyn, sop 43.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right,

         13  4,300 tons.

         14                 And maybe you can tell me, shouldn't

         15  that trigger a modification of the Solid Waste

         16  Management Plan?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: There

         18  is, as a matter of fact, I think the draft scoping

         19  document is going out next week --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Today.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  Today. And then there will be a public hearing the

         23  second week of April on the whole long-term plan.

         24                 The modification for the Solid Waste

         25  Management Plan we submitted to Council back in
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          2  April of last year, April of '98, and since the

          3  announcement early December of the long-term marine

          4  export plan, part of that process, as you know,

          5  requires the scoping document to go out for public

          6  review. It is going out today, and there will be a

          7  public hearing, I believe it is on April 13th in

          8  Manhattan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I guess

         10  what is going on today will be the final -- what you

         11  think is the final plan, or we are still working on

         12  the modification plan; is that right?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: What is

         14  going on today is the draft scoping document. That

         15  document outlines the breath of the scope of work

         16  that will be undertaken in the environmental impact

         17  analysis of the long-term plan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: When can we

         19  expect the plan to be actually final, and to be

         20  passed into the official plan, the modification?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, the

         22  environmental impact process begins with the scoping

         23  document and then there is a public hearing and then

         24  a final scope is developed and then the work is

         25  undertaken and then there will be a draft
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          2  environmental impact statement which will likely be

          3  in the summer, which there will be an enormous

          4  amount of public comment and public hearing process

          5  involved, including this Committee. And then at that

          6  point, the Environmental Impact Statement is

          7  associated with the swamp modification. I am sorry

          8  for the length of the answer but they are all

          9  related.

         10                 And at that point when the EIS and

         11  swamp discussions have been completed, this

         12  Committee and then the full Council would adopt the

         13  Solid Waste Management Plan and then DEC would

         14  approve it, and that would be the modification to

         15  the Solid Waste Management Plan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Just a real

         17  quick clarification. I guess you feel that 4,300

         18  tons, the changing of the stream of 4,300 tons, you

         19  can do that without getting a modified final plan,

         20  solid waste management plan, you could do that

         21  without any input from the Council; I guess you feel

         22  that that is an accurate statement?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         24  1,900 tons for the Bronx was in the previous Solid

         25  Waste Management Plan, so we feel that this
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          2  additional 2,400 tons for Brooklyn is well within

          3  the guidelines of doing it, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The

          5  guidelines are not ten percent?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Excuse me?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Are the

          9  guidelines not ten percent?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         11  think the guidelines say any time there is ten

         12  percent or more in the way you handle garbage there

         13  needs to be a modification to the Solid Waste

         14  Management Plan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And 2,400

         16  tons is not ten percent? I am just trying to get it.

         17  It is more than ten percent?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         19  it is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So why is

         21  it then that one has nothing to do with the other? I

         22  don't understand it. Maybe you can explain it.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST:

         24  Councilman, I think you know this is an issue in

         25  your litigation, so I don't know that we will get

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            70

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2  into an extensive discussion around it. But as you

          3  know from the City's court papers, the City has said

          4  two things:

          5                 One, we have a pending draft

          6  modification to the Solid Waste Management Plan, and

          7  for the long-term plan, and these contracts are the

          8  interim contracts, which there has been thorough

          9  environmental review.

         10                 On those two bases the City has

         11  determined that is, and DEC has concurred, that the

         12  export of this waste is appropriate and lawful.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, I just

         14  want to get this, what you are saying is that what

         15  you do on the interim plan does not have to be

         16  approved by this Council; that is what you are

         17  saying, is that it?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I

         21  just wanted to understand that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez, I

         23  am glad you are going into this, but this really is

         24  a budget hearing --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I know.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And believe me,

          3  you are going to have this issue coming out of your

          4  ears and everywhere else by the time we get finished

          5  with it.

          6                 But if you feel it is appropriate, I

          7  wanted to give you the courtesy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But with respect

         10  to the budget modifications of it, please confine

         11  yourself to that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: In here you

         15  mentioned that as a result of I guess some

         16  litigation you are saving $7.3 million on some

         17  interim plan; can you tell me what that is all

         18  about? Where you come up with this number?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: That

         20  is, when the lawsuit was brought in Brooklyn, what

         21  it did was delay the export of waste for a couple of

         22  months, that was money that was in the budget. That

         23  was funds that would have been paying to export the

         24  waste, but of course there was this kind of

         25  two-month delay where we weren't exporting waste and
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          2  we were sending it out to Staten Island, that

          3  accrued some savings and that saving is about 1.1

          4  million in this fiscal year and 6.6 million for the

          5  balance of the year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The interim

          7  plan --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Wait a second.

          9  What are you doing with the money?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It is

         11  coming out of the budget.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The savings? The

         13  savings of this Fiscal Year '99, it was in '99 and

         14  you now have a 7.36 million savings, and you know,

         15  what are we doing with that money?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It

         17  goes back into the general fund.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is going back

         19  into the general fund?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

         23  going to use it for the recycling money and do

         24  wonderful things like that?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was pulled

          3  out already in the proposed budget mod. Well, maybe

          4  they can reverse it. Maybe they can put it in

          5  recycling. You are proposing to put it back in the

          6  general fund?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How much money

          9  is left over from the weekly recycling allocation

         10  that was not spent?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: How

         12  much money is left over --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We put money in

         14  Fiscal '99 for weekly recycling, we just recently

         15  passed the legislation, and we are delaying the

         16  implementation of weekly recycling, so there is a

         17  money savings; what is going on with that money and

         18  how much was it?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         20  hired the Sanitation workers -- as you know, the

         21  implementation of weekly recycling is going to start

         22  this month, and we hired 432 Sanitation workers to

         23  do that work. And as a result of hiring them up

         24  front, we were able to save a lot of overtime, and

         25  so that is what we did with that money.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I must have

          3  missed that. Did you give me a dollar amount at how

          4  much we saved at the lack of implementation of

          5  weekly recycling?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

          7  believe it was about $6 million for next fiscal

          8  year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is for

         10  export. That is waste export?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

         12  no. I think it is the -- I stand corrected. The

         13  figures I gave you earlier on the export, the

         14  savings in overtime by hiring the 432 was 1.1

         15  million this year, and $6 million next year, so the

         16  figures I gave you earlier were overtime savings by

         17  hiring the 432 people.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So does that

         19  come to $7.35 million?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes,

         21  it does.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's savings

         23  on as far as waste export?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

         25  the waste export, there is another number that was
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          2  saved, I will have to get you that number for that

          3  period of time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So the money

          5  that was saved from implementation of the weekly

          6  recycling, the $6 million?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It

          8  was a savings in overtime by hiring the people ahead

          9  of time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, and what

         11  did we do with that money? Is that in the budget mod

         12  also?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: That

         14  is part of the budget mod.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The money for

         16  the waste reduction is in the budget, but is the

         17  money for the recycling saving in the budget mod as

         18  well?

         19                 Or there are no savings you are

         20  saying, because you hired these people?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         22  will have to get back to you with an answer.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Will you,

         24  please? I would like to get straightened out on

         25  that.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Angel, are you

          4  finished?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, I have

          6  a couple more questions.

          7                 Let me just ask you a simple budget

          8  question. How much is the interim plan expected to

          9  cost in the next fiscal year? Over and above -- is

         10  that the way you calculate it? Over and above what

         11  normally it would cost? Or just give me the total

         12  number? Either way is fine.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         14  interim plan for this year, most of this money is

         15  for export cost, it is $55 million, $55.8 million.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And how

         17  about next year, in the next couple of years?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Next

         19  year it is $91 million.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And that is

         21  as far as you go? Or do you go any further than

         22  that?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         24  in Year '01 it is $123 million. And this increase is

         25  the exporting cost price per ton that we anticipate
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          2  paying a private vendor to export the waste.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Because you

          4  have more garbage?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          6  Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right, I

          8  understand that.

          9                 Okay, I see in your capital plan that

         10  you are going to spend $4 million on I guess

         11  rehabbing your MTS's? Is that accurate?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE:

         13  Every year in the capital budget we have an

         14  allocation for certain rehabilitation work to keep

         15  the MTS's in their current condition. That includes

         16  roofing work, various types work that you would need

         17  to upkeep your marine system.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So really

         19  it is not a rehab, it is just maintenance?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: It

         21  is capitalizable maintenance.  It extends the life

         22  of the facility.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Four million

         24  dollars.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, I
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          2  have one last question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let's not leave

          4  the marine transfer stations so quickly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well, you

          6  said we will get to that later?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No. What I

          8  wanted to do was talk -- it has been stated, and we

          9  are going to let you comment on this, that the

         10  Administration was against retrofitting of the

         11  marine transfer stations so they can be used in the

         12  export of waste, and as far as the long-term

         13  solution is concerned.

         14                 However, I have been detecting

         15  recently that at the most they are relooking at

         16  that, examining that issue again and there may be

         17  some possibility, I am not saying probability, some

         18  possibility as there may be retrofitting,

         19  reexamining, we may even have some retrofitting.

         20                 Is anything in the budget for

         21  retrofitting and is there anything contemplated that

         22  when we get the plan in April we will have some

         23  money in the capital money for retrofitting?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: There

         25  is nothing in the budget right now for any
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          2  retrofitting. The proposals that we have received to

          3  date, and by the way there were just a few, have not

          4  demonstrated to our satisfaction that they would

          5  improve the efficiency of the marine transfer

          6  stations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Proposals for

          8  what?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: For

         10  retrofitting.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         12  there was a request for proposals for retrofitting

         13  of MTS's?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: As a

         15  result of our putting out our marine RFP, we had

         16  gotten back proposals from one or two companies to

         17  do retrofitting, and when we looked at those

         18  proposals --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am trying to

         20  get an understanding first, was there something out

         21  there asking for people to put proposals in for

         22  retrofitting in marine transfer stations?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

         24  not at all. We didn't ask for that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But some people
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          2  did it anyway.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Right, in their proposals.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And those which

          6  you received were not satisfactory?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: They

          8  weren't satisfactory. They weren't detailed enough.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there some

         10  thought about putting out a proposal, an RFP itself

         11  on retrofitting and seeing what you get back then?

         12  Because evidently the people who are out there who

         13  could possibly be doing this, have not responded to

         14  it because there really has not been an RFP for

         15  retrofitting.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Am I

         17  correct in assuming that the RFP you put out

         18  specifically precluded people from considering

         19  retrofitting?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         21  That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So then if

         23  you specifically prevent the people from considering

         24  that option, you are saying in spite of that you

         25  still have got some RFPs that included that option,
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          2  and you are trying to say that those RFPs that you

          3  got that responded to something that you

          4  specifically said don't respond to are the ones that

          5  you are using to decide that the plans are not any

          6  good; is that what you are saying?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, that is not

          8  what he said.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No, I

         10  didn't say that at all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What he said is

         12  the people who responded to an RFP which didn't ask

         13  for retrofitting, which prohibited retrofitting,

         14  some did put it in a proposal for retrofitting, and

         15  they were not satisfactory.

         16                 He hasn't said anything about a basis

         17  of saying that they precluded retrofitting

         18  altogether.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, go

         20  ahead. I am sorry, respond.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         22  draft scoping document that is going out today

         23  allows for a review, it allows for people to come

         24  forward during the public process, allows the people

         25  to submit ideas on retrofitting.
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          2                 As I mentioned earlier, what we have

          3  received --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is this for the

          5  interim or the long-range plans?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Long-range plans.

          8                 What we have received to date has

          9  been only conceptual at best and by some of the

         10  proposals themselves have acknowledged that it

         11  reduces the throughput of the transfer stations,

         12  which is something that is, you know, we can't allow

         13  to happen.

         14                 However, we are open --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Say that again.

         16  I missed those last few words.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

         18  proposal, one of the proposals that we had received

         19  actually proposed a reduced capacity of our barges,

         20  less than we currently handle, so we felt why would

         21  we want to reduce the capacity and the throughput of

         22  our marine transfer stations, they worked very

         23  efficiently and effectively.

         24                 So, we are open to any ideas that

         25  people had that will improve the efficiency of our
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          2  transfer stations and if it comes through

          3  retrofitting, we will take a serious look at it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I guess the

          5  point that has to be made, you know, this is not a

          6  bugetary issue. And what I would want to know, was

          7  the question I was going to ask with respect to is

          8  there any money involved?

          9                 The question in everyone's mind is

         10  how do we get the long-range plan implemented as

         11  soon as possible, and avoid what many people

         12  consider a plan which is really not very well

         13  received and that is the interim plan which requires

         14  land-based transfer stations and transportation

         15  through communities and throughout the City of these

         16  trucks carrying garbage. So anything that would

         17  hasten the use of the marine transfer stations is

         18  much to be desired, and if we feel, if you feel that

         19  we can do some retrofitting, which would be a much

         20  quicker way of -- or it could be done more quickly,

         21  than having to build these new type of facilities,

         22  the unloading facilities --

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  EBUFs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Enclosed Barge
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          2  --

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Enclosed Barge Unloading Facilities.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Because it is

          6  anticipated that with that system it is going to

          7  take much longer, and would require us to have a

          8  longer period of time of the interim plan, so that

          9  is the basis of the questioning. That is why most

         10  people have been very much interested in doing the

         11  retrofitting.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         13  we have looked at this for years, and for many, many

         14  different venues, and point in fact is that, again,

         15  we are open to suggestions, we are open to good,

         16  concrete, very thorough proposals, and if something

         17  comes along we will take a look at it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The fact of the

         19  matter is there has never been an RFP for

         20  retrofitting of MTS's.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what you are

         24  now thinking about is going about and asking for

         25  such things?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No,

          3  we are not asking for an RFP. As far as --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, I didn't say

          5  an RFP. Asking for something.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

          7  are asking for people's input as part of the draft

          8  scoping document, people will be free to give us

          9  their ideas.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

         11  method by which you are going to do that?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: They

         13  will come to the public hearings, they will make

         14  proposals on what -- you know, give us their ideas

         15  and as part of that we will follow up on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there any

         17  reason why we wouldn't issue an RFP? What is the

         18  reason for not issuing an RFP?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: At

         20  this point in time I think the draft scoping

         21  document is an avenue where people can give us their

         22  ideas.

         23                 I think at this point we would be

         24  receptive --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You would be
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          2  receptive to formal proposals of retrofitting of the

          3  MTS's?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: What

          5  we would be receptive to is people as part of the

          6  process will come up and tell us that if they have

          7  ideas that encourage us to go look forward on any of

          8  the ideas. If they come forward and say this is what

          9  we have, this is how we think you can do it, we will

         10  look at it and we will follow up on it but it has to

         11  be something that is concrete and not just a

         12  conceptual idea.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that is

         14  what we are talking about, a formal document given

         15  to you, all of the ramifications of it.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: And

         17  we will follow it up, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Which

         19  people are you talking about? You are asking the

         20  industry I guess, because you are not asking me to

         21  come up with an answer, because I don't have an

         22  answer, although people think I know a lot about the

         23  subject. You should go to the industries and say,

         24  you know what, what do you have? And I understand

         25  the process to be to put out an RFP. That is what I
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          2  understand it to be.

          3                 Let me see if I understand what you

          4  are expecting. You are expecting people from the

          5  industry out there to show up at some kind of

          6  scoping hearing and say this is what is going to

          7  work, and then you are going to consider that and

          8  you are saying you want me to believe that when they

          9  say that you are going to say, oh, that's a great

         10  idea, we will do that; is that what you are saying?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         13  Rodriguez, let me just say I think we have moved

         14  maybe half a step forward on this issue, so I think

         15  in the sense we are now open to the idea of --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: When we are

         17  looking to make sure that Freshkills closes on time,

         18  over the period of since a year and a half that I

         19  have been here, half a step at a time is not going

         20  to get us there.

         21                 If we want to close it on time and if

         22  we want to make sure it closes on time, we can't be

         23  taking these half steps.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are all

         25  committed to that, but the fact of the matter is the
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          2  first time I have heard that there is any interest

          3  at all on the agency's part of retrofitting, we have

          4  never heard that before.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: If there

          6  was serious interest, they would put out an RFP and

          7  say to the industry, we are really considering it,

          8  we want to do it, give us your solutions, tell us

          9  what you think, tell us if there is any way to do

         10  it, or if not, you can tell us why there is no way

         11  to do it.

         12                 Can you tell us about the comments

         13  that DEC made with regard to MTS's? Can you tell us

         14  what their response was?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: What

         16  does that have to do with the budget hearing?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Oh, all of

         18  a sudden we are off budget.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez,

         20  he's right --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Because the

         22  DEC said specifically, that their answer was not

         23  good enough.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just say

         25  this --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That is

          3  what the DEC said.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The reason that

          5  I have been asking these questions on retrofitting,

          6  the reason we have expressed interest, is because we

          7  wanted to know whether or not there would be budget

          8  ramifications. If they are going to do retrofitting,

          9  then there are going to be budget ramifications, the

         10  City owns all of these MTAs, as opposed to the EBUFs

         11  which are supposed to be owned privately.

         12                 As far as the issue, this is another

         13  issue, plus the fact, and I want to make

         14  representations here that we have been promised a

         15  thorough briefing by the agency on the issue of

         16  retrofitting.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I

         18  specifically kept away from it because you said that

         19  it was a budget issue. So when you opened it up I

         20  thought it fair to follow it, but that's fine.

         21                 I have one more last question, it has

         22  nothing to do with MTSs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please. As

         24  long as it has budget implications, you certainly

         25  can ask any question you want.
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          2                 Go right ahead.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          4                 I see here somewhere that, I guess,

          5  and you will have to correct me, it may not be 100

          6  percent correct but I think it is; the agency's

          7  preliminary capital budget is 28 percent more than

          8  the adopted FY 2000, 2003, which means it is going

          9  to go up by $227 million more than we had adopted.

         10  Now, can you tell me what that $227 million is for?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         12  will ask Commissioner Della Corte to answer that.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: No,

         14  that is not correct. What happens is the comparison

         15  is the four-year program which was from '99 and

         16  2002, which compares the new four-year program,

         17  which is from 2003. The last year, 2003, is over

         18  $200 million. So it gives you the appearance, in

         19  other words, you are comparing apples to peaches.

         20  You are comparing two four-year programs. This

         21  program now adds the Year 2003 on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can you

         23  tell me what change in these --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: No,

         25  there are no changes at all. In other words, if you
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          2  looked over the ten-year program, it is the same

          3  allocations. It just the numbers you are looking at

          4  are the previous four-year programs.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Quinn. I get such a

          9  pleasure saying that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Hi,

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  Hello.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This is just an

         15  easy question, I am just interested; how many of

         16  these graffiti trucks do we have?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         18  have one graffiti truck that does painting and we

         19  have two, what we call trucks that do power washing.

         20  There is water under pressure that removes the

         21  graffiti.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And those are,

         23  you just call CAU and work with them if you need

         24  them; is that right?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,
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          2  as I mentioned earlier, these trucks that we own and

          3  operate with our own personnel, we go out and clean

          4  graffiti from a number of different requests, from

          5  the community boards, district managers, Council

          6  people, and when there is something that requires

          7  the coordination of another City agency, that kind

          8  of coordination is handled through the Community

          9  Assistance Unit in the Mayor's Office.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 On the basket pick-up issue, which

         12  was discussed earlier, obviously I share people's

         13  concerns, the concerns that were raised. You

         14  mentioned that there would be 20 something amount of

         15  additional trucks put on for the beach areas in the

         16  summertime; I was wondering if there are going to be

         17  any additional resources put on in other areas that

         18  get a lot of additional traffic for the summer time,

         19  so I am thinking of, you know, the Christopher

         20  Street in Greenwich Village in my district is very,

         21  very trafficked (sic), in the summertime there is

         22  always a problem with overflowing garbage, you know,

         23  the piers by the Hudson River, et cetera. So, are

         24  you also targeting summer places that may not be

         25  sand-based?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  Manhattan has the lion's share of the basket trucks

          4  when you look at the Citywide number. So, Manhattan

          5  is fully staffed all year round, so there are no

          6  additional basket trucks that are allocated to the

          7  Borough of Manhattan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, like

          9  Christopher Street, for example, wouldn't get any

         10  extra summer resources?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No.

         12  But that whole area gets a lot of basket service

         13  right now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes, that may

         15  very well be true. It is just that there are still

         16  so many people, it just is still more garbage than

         17  pick-up.

         18                 In NYCHA, is there any money set

         19  aside in the budget for housing projects to buy

         20  receptacles to put the containers, receptacles, to

         21  put the recyclable materials in? One of the things I

         22  heard a lot when I was running for office was that

         23  people are excited about recycling but they don't

         24  really have anywhere to put it and it is creating a

         25  pest and vermin problem for them.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

          3  really think that is a question that NYCHA could

          4  best answer, if there is money in their budget.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But there is

          6  nothing in DOS' budget to help them do that?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: No.

          8  Each agency, each resident has to provide for their

          9  own containers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, I guess

         11  what I mean is not so much the resident for their

         12  own container, but like I take it out of my

         13  apartment building, I put it, you know, the janitors

         14  then collect it together and put it outside for pick

         15  up. What I am hearing is that there aren't the

         16  large, you know, like dumpster-type things for the

         17  recycling to sit in, and that it is sitting out, you

         18  know, usually kind of in the parking lot or near it,

         19  in bags, et cetera, and that is causing a rat and

         20  bug problem for people. So, would that be you or

         21  them for like the dumpster-type thing?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It

         23  would be NYCHA. It would be NYCHA.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: When
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          2  I mentioned residents earlier, I meant if you were a

          3  one or two-family owner of a home, that owner of

          4  that home is required to provide their own

          5  receptacle, both for garbage, as well as

          6  recyclables.

          7                 And it is the same way with the

          8  Housing Authority or the Board of Education. It is

          9  their responsibility to provide the containers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. In this

         11  proposed budget does the number of WEP workers that

         12  you are using to provide sanitation services go up

         13  or go down or stay the same, and if it goes up, is

         14  that saving the Department money? And if so, how

         15  much and where is that savings being allocated?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: It

         17  stays about the same, it is about 420 to 430 on any

         18  given day.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is the

         20  number of WEP workers?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: WEP

         22  workers on any given day. And there are Sanitation

         23  workers and supervisors that work in conjunction,

         24  they form teams and they go out and clean designated

         25  areas.
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          2                 So, that number has held pretty

          3  steadily for the last year or so.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

          6  Miller.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 Let me just say firstoff, that I

         10  think it is disingenuous of the Commissioner to ask

         11  us what retrofitting has to do with the budgetary

         12  impact, because what we are talking about here and

         13  when we talked about the closure of Freshkills, you

         14  are talking about an enormous expense that the City

         15  has undertaken. How much do we expect that closing

         16  Freshkills early, a concept that we in this Council

         17  and which everybody agrees is a good idea, how much

         18  more money is it going to cost us a year? We are

         19  closing it about ten years early? How many years are

         20  we closing it early, according to current estimates?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Ten

         22  to 15 years early.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Ten to 15

         24  years early, and how much a year do we expect it is

         25  going to cost us more?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: An

          3  estimate? Annual cost right now to dispose about

          4  100,000 -- excuse me, 100 million, and we expect the

          5  export is going to cost 300 million, so it is an

          6  additional 200 million, a net 200 additional million

          7  to export.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, so what

          9  we are talking about here is closing Freshkills,

         10  which is a good thing to do, environmentally

         11  conscious thing to do, something I have supported,

         12  other people have supported, you know, so we are

         13  talking about it, but when we are talking about how

         14  we are going to deal with it, that is clearly going

         15  to have a major budgetary impact, and whether we

         16  retrofit the existing MTS stations or whether we

         17  don't retrofit the existing MTA stations, what the

         18  current state of the plans are with regard to those

         19  stations, with regard to the interim solutions, has

         20  an enormous fiscal impact; isn't that correct?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  That's correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: All right. I

         24  just wanted to establish that.

         25                 So, we are talking about, it is going
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          2  to cost us about $3 billion over 15 years to close

          3  Freshkills before we would have had to close it

          4  anyway, somewhere around that?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: If

          6  you did the math, okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes. Okay.

          8                 My good colleague here from Brooklyn

          9  did the math for me, and I count on him for that.

         10                 The question that I have for you, in

         11  terms of this problem, and I know that maybe there

         12  is some resistance about this, but I want to get a

         13  clear picture of this because I think it has an

         14  enormous budgetary impact. When we did the RFP for

         15  the long-term solution, and we included the MTS

         16  stations, we said you can include the MTS stations

         17  as long as you had a site in which the current

         18  barging system was taking it to, there it would be

         19  containerized and sent elsewhere and we have had

         20  some resistance to that.

         21                 Why did we limit it to that? Why did

         22  we not at least say in the RFP, well, if you have a

         23  better idea about how to use the MTS system, give it

         24  to us?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,
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          2  first of all, the MTS system, the way it currently

          3  works, and has worked for over 50 years, is

          4  extremely, extremely efficient. It is extremely

          5  efficient, and it is proven to be because it has

          6  worked.

          7                 Secondly, we have the responsibility

          8  of closing the landfill by date certain, less than

          9  three years from now. We wanted to make sure that we

         10  provide ourselves with the most assurances that we

         11  would reach that deadline. We did not want to, based

         12  on our knowledge, and based on our experience,

         13  dating back to the 1980s when we looked at

         14  retrofitting, and had not seen any proposals of any

         15  merit, we did not want to try something that has not

         16  been proven yet, that would in fact, and could

         17  possibly delay the closure of Freshkills, if we were

         18  to introduce this. We have looked at this, we have

         19  looked at it very hard and very long, no one to

         20  date, we have had meetings in the Commissioner's

         21  Office with the large companies, no one has come up

         22  with a detailed proposal on how to close, excuse me,

         23  on how to retrofit the marine transfer stations. Not

         24  one company.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.
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          2                 And how much money -- the plan for

          3  Staten Island is to continue to use the existing

          4  Freshkills site as a containerization site and then

          5  run a rail line up to the Staten Island site and

          6  then ship it out by rail; is that correct?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: The

          8  proposal is for just Staten Island.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Just Staten

         10  Island.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  Nobody else.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Does Staten

         14  Island currently use the marine system from other

         15  parts of Staten Island? Or do they just come by

         16  truck?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: They

         18  come by truck directly to the landfill.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So there won't

         20  be any marine use of that site whatsoever? It will

         21  just be trucks coming to the Freshkills site with

         22  just Staten Island garbage, and then containerized

         23  in an indoor facility in order to prevent impact

         24  upon the surrounding neighborhoods that are

         25  somewhere near there, and then trucked out by rail
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          2  from that site; is that correct?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Because of the

          6  Freshkills document, the task force document, which

          7  said that each borough has to support itself, there

          8  wasn't any consideration given at the time or since

          9  to using the existing MTS system, which you describe

         10  as extremely efficient, to take in the garbage to an

         11  indoor site there on Freshkills and then trucking it

         12  -- and then railing it out?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: You

         14  take all the City's waste the way it is currently

         15  done to Freshkills, containerize it and ship it out?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right, yes.

         17  That was given no consideration as a result of

         18  Freshkills task force?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         20  I mean, once the plan was to close it, the thought

         21  of having garbage continue to go there was

         22  unacceptable.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         24                 Let me just -- I thank you for those

         25  answers to those questions.
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          2                 Let me just -- it wouldn't be budget

          3  time if you and I didn't engage in our yearly update

          4  on the Department of Sanitation's Expense Planning

          5  process --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They take it

          7  out, you put it back in.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.-- To

          9  handling garbage on Roosevelt Island. I am sure, you

         10  know, that given we are here a year later and that

         11  once again the Department has proposed limiting

         12  Sanitation service for as it currently stands

         13  Roosevelt Island, essentially offering to pick up

         14  garbage in the way that it does and everywhere else

         15  in the City, that you have engaged in some

         16  significant planning for that eventuality; is that

         17  the case?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, who have

         21  you reached out to in Roosevelt Island?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         23  sent a letter out to Dr. Jerome Blue, who is the

         24  President and Chief Operating Officer for the

         25  facility.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Alerting him to the fact of the City and our plans

          5  to stop the HVA system that they have there and to

          6  start regular collections effective July 1st.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Effective July

          8  1st.

          9                 And how much money is that going to

         10  cost the City?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: For

         12  us to provide the collection service six days a week

         13  would cost about 175,000.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         15                 So you are talking about six day a

         16  week collection service and the net savings then,

         17  and it is in the budget, the additional $175,000? Or

         18  am I going to be asked to put that money in the

         19  budget as well?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         21  will have to check to see.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Great.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  That's a net savings though.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: It is a net
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          2  savings.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You estimate

          5  it to be a net savings?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Have you also

          9  factored into that, that there is expected to be

         10  some considerable development in Roosevelt Island,

         11  they are planning to extend, develop something

         12  called Southtown, which will also require Sanitation

         13  service as well.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

         15  any time there is expansion of new homes which

         16  require additional service, we do that around the

         17  City every day.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Great.

         19                 Okay, if you could send me a copy of

         20  the letter that you sent to Dr. Blue, the efficient

         21  guy that he is, I am sure that he is acting on it

         22  extremely diligently.

         23                 And also any numbers that you have to

         24  support your estimates for the service, I would

         25  appreciate it.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  Certainly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: This is great.

          5  This is better than the last three years.

          6                 Thank you very much, Stanley.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

          8                 Fiscal '99 adopted budget, included

          9  approximately 7.5 million related to recycling

         10  education and outreach -- yes, Martha, this is for

         11  you.

         12                 And 3.5 million was the Executive

         13  Budget, and the Council of the budget adoptive

         14  process added four million; what is happening with

         15  this money? How has it been spent? And if it has not

         16  yet been spent, how does the Department intend to

         17  spend it?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: The short

         19  answer to what is happening with the money is we are

         20  spending it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The long answer

         22  is how you are spending it.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are

         24  spending it well.

         25                 The lion's share of the additional
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          2  funding will go to do outreach around the weekly

          3  recycling, and the ongoing medica campaign. I think

          4  you all on the Committee are fully familiar with the

          5  advertising campaign that we did last year with the

          6  bins and bags and the subway trains.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did you do

          8  something with the Yankee manager?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Excuse me?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Wasn't there

         11  something done with Joe Torry?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, the

         13  Mayor and Joe Torry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And who else?

         15  And the Mayor.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: And the

         17  Mayor, right.

         18                 Where Joe Torry teaches the Mayor how

         19  to pitch and what they are pitching is recycling

         20  containers into the appropriate bins, rather than

         21  over the plate.

         22                 That is a terrific ad. In fact, we

         23  ran it and others in a new outlet this year. There

         24  were some big, huge television screens posted at

         25  three different locations on the New York City
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          2  marathon route, I don't know if the Commissioner saw

          3  them, but he is the only one who I know ran the

          4  marathon.

          5                 And that was a huge audience and an

          6  exciting outlet for us to have our recycling

          7  campaigns, since so many of the New Yorkers come out

          8  for that event.

          9                 We ran the ads that you just spoke

         10  of, as well as our bins and bags to very successful

         11  and positive public receipt, and we will be

         12  expanding that campaign and you will be seeing it,

         13  we do it fall and spring and you will be seeing it

         14  early summer this year, with those additional funds.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there a

         16  poster child or a poster animal for recycling?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: There are

         18  the bins and bags. They are animated cartoon

         19  characters. The blue and green containers each sort

         20  of have personalities associated with them if you

         21  look at the ads we have done.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am going to

         23  say three words, Macy*s Thanksgiving Day Parade

         24  balloons.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: That would
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          2  be a terrific idea.

          3                 We actually do have cartoons costumes

          4  for those bins and bags figures, and I don't know if

          5  we have any volunteers in the room that want to --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Put it within

          7  the guidelines of the parade and put in a balloon,

          8  you know?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We will

         10  look into it, it's a great idea.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The kids would

         12  love it and everything.

         13                 So what are we doing about the Board

         14  of Education?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are

         16  doing a lot about the Board of Education.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

         18  Board of Education doing?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: What is

         20  the Board of Education doing? I hope you will ask

         21  them that question.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I will.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: As you

         24  continue to do.

         25                 As the Commissioner mentioned, we met
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          2  with the Board most recently last week to talk again

          3  about renewing their efforts in schools. We have

          4  been embarking on an aggressive enforcement

          5  campaign, which I know the Committee has urged us to

          6  do over the years.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are now

          8  using the velvet glove approach?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes,

         10  that's correct.

         11                 We are also continuing, however, to

         12  work on the curriculum side and to work with

         13  district superintendents and principals.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are there any

         15  school districts that are implementing this as part

         16  of their curriculum now?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have given

         19  them the materials.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: There are

         21  a lot of schools that are implementing it, and we

         22  are continuing to work on the consolidated

         23  curriculum materials that were the basis for the

         24  workshop that you attended last year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: The

          3  division at the Board of Ed with curriculum

          4  development responsibility is still at work on the

          5  consolidation of those materials. There is a lot of

          6  recycling education going on at all levels in the

          7  Board, the issue for us and for you had been to

          8  consolidate bills into one curriculum and that is

          9  what the Board is continuing to work with us on.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And is it in the

         11  curriculum? I have never seen it as part of the

         12  curriculum of the schools?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: It is in

         14  the curriculum. You could go to environmental

         15  science curriculum in the board and see it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you

         17  satisfied the Board of Education is doing enough?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well,

         19  there is always room for improvement. We are not

         20  satisfied that they are doing enough, but they are

         21  certainly on the right track, and on the curriculum

         22  side they are on the right track. I might add, we

         23  have added a terrific program on the composting side

         24  this year working with the Botanical Gardens. They

         25  are now offering workshops to science teachers and
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          2  other teachers in the Board of Ed that provide for

          3  new teacher credits for the board teachers,

          4  involving warm bin composting in the classrooms.

          5  Which is an exciting thing, particularly for younger

          6  kids, but all the way through high school it's a

          7  classroom activity that educates kids about the

          8  benefits of composting and you can see the

          9  demonstration of it right in the classroom.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. But I

         11  would like to know more about what the board --

         12  because I still believe that these kids can be the

         13  vanguard of changing people's attitudes on

         14  recycling, and if they do it in school, they will do

         15  it at home.

         16                 The Department proposes to increase

         17  the enforcement of street cleanliness and recycling

         18  compliance throughout the City by pursuing a more

         19  aggressive enforcement campaign, and by issuing more

         20  notices of violations for non-compliance with the

         21  City's street cleanliness and recycling laws.

         22                 You know, the Department states that

         23  it predicts $680,000 in revenues would be generated

         24  to Fiscal 2000 and the outyears. Does the Department

         25  plan to increase the number of enforcement
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          2  personnel, or does it intend on having the currently

          3  number of enforcement personnel increase their

          4  issuance of summonses? More people or more

          5  summonses?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: There

          7  are not going to be any additional people, it is

          8  going to be more summonses. In total, probably about

          9  an additional 47,000 summonses will be issued,

         10  mainly for recycling and administrative code

         11  violations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And throughout

         13  the City.

         14                 Now, they have been trained in

         15  issuing the summonses so that we will have much

         16  fewer improperly drawn summonses?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Yes.

         18  I mean, the existing sanitation enforcement agents,

         19  66 of them, the 108 sanitation police, as well as

         20  the thousand supervisors that we have, they have all

         21  been trained, doing it right now, they just will

         22  continue to do it at a more stepped up pace.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many

         24  personnel currently do it?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: In
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          2  total, there is probably about 1,200. As I say, 66

          3  enforcement agents, 108 san cops, and about 1,000

          4  supervisors.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This is a

          6  Citywide initiative, I take it?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Citywide, absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

         10                 Okay, we are coming down to the wire.

         11                 Could you give us an outline of the

         12  categories of funding and proposed projects DEP

         13  plans -- no, not DEP -- I am talking about the

         14  Environmental Bond Act -- I mean DOS. You were

         15  entitled to some monies under the Environmental

         16  Clean Air, Environmental Bond Act of '96, where it

         17  authorized $1.75 million in bonds to finance

         18  environmental projects; what monies have you -- what

         19  applications are you making for any of that money?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Mr.

         21  Chairman, there is a broad category of funding that

         22  is available from the state --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: And they

         25  have combined them all to some degree.
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          2                 You know that we received finally

          3  last year $25 million, approximately $25 million in

          4  EQBA funds for recycling trucks and the Rikers

          5  Island Project.

          6                 In addition, there is outstanding

          7  funds from the EQBA pot that are still available to

          8  this City of about $22 million, and we are in the

          9  process of compiling applications for the use of

         10  those funds.

         11                 There is some overlap between the

         12  EQBA funding and funding available under the

         13  Environmental Protection Fund and Clean Water Clean

         14  Air Act. So, $22 million or so of projects we are

         15  currently compiling applications for, and they are

         16  additional recycling collection vehicles, our yard

         17  waste composting sites, some are special waste

         18  efforts and so forth, all the fundaments of the

         19  equipment on the recycling side.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The money that

         21  was originally the money from EQBA to Staten Island

         22  for a MRF --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you remember

         25  we were going to build a big MRF in Staten Island?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That money has

          4  not been lost, has it?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: No, it was

          6  converted.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We directed

          8  that.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's

         10  right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How much was

         12  that originally? Somewhere over 20 million, as I

         13  remember?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Nineteen

         15  million. Commissioner Della Corte advises me $19

         16  million for Staten Island.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And where did we

         18  direct that money to?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: That is

         20  part of the $22 million that I am referring to.

         21                 Under the Environmental Protection

         22  Fund, which is a particular funding stream that the

         23  State has, we have got pending with the State 17

         24  full applications, totalling almost $15 million,

         25  $14.3 million in fact, that is funding that we can
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          2  use -- as you know, on the recycling side we have

          3  the hard cost of equipment and site development,

          4  compost and so forth, and then our education and

          5  outreach materials. And so the lion's share of those

          6  applications are for funding for our waste

          7  prevention materials, compost education materials,

          8  recycling education materials. Those are all

          9  pending.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How much money

         11  do you already receive from this bond issue?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Excuse me?

         13  From the Clean Water Clean Air Act we have received

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, from the

         16  Environmental Bond Act.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST:

         18  Twenty-five million to date.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Twenty-five

         20  million.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: And some

         22  for the closure of the Edgemere Landfill, but that

         23  is a different small pot of money.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: The other
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          2  piece of the Clean Water Clean Air Bond Act which is

          3  earmarked for the City is the $75 million for the

          4  Freshkills Landfill closure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. That we

          6  know about.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right. And

          8  we have submitted the appropriate application

          9  materials to DEC involving the Freshkills leachate

         10  collection system.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, as far as

         12  you know, we are on top of all of the potential

         13  monies that we can receive, and we are not letting

         14  deadlines go by us?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, we

         16  are. We are on top of it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Department

         18  will generate a savings of about $500,000 in Fiscal

         19  2000 by reducing the cost of procuring repair parts

         20  to Sanitation trucks by buying secondary repair

         21  parts rather than repair parts through the original

         22  manufacturer.

         23                 And it would also save $300,000

         24  through reducing overtime in the Bureau of Motor

         25  Equipment. Is the Department concerned about the
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          2  quality of the secondary repair parts?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

          4  will have Deputy Commissioner Della Corte answer

          5  that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: We

          8  are --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know when I

         10  have my car repaired, I always try to get original

         11  equipment from the factory rather than rebuilt

         12  equipment.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: We

         14  are not concerned -- let me explain first what

         15  secondary repair parts mean. Another terminology

         16  might be after market parts. A good example to you

         17  would be if you bought a Ford vehicle, if you bought

         18  a shock absorber, you could also buy a Monroe,

         19  Gabriel, various name brand shock absorbers that

         20  could go in their car. So, you might pay $50 for a

         21  Ford shock absorber when you can buy a Monroe or

         22  Gabriel which is as good or better quality for half

         23  the price.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So it is not

         25  rebuilt.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: It

          3  is brand new.

          4                 Additionally, mainly in our truck

          5  area, for example, Mack trucks or a name like that,

          6  they get their components in which they put in their

          7  trucks and they stamp it with the Mack stamp, they

          8  get them built by other manufacturers. So, what we

          9  do is we do the investigation of finding who those

         10  manufacturers are and then we deal direct with them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you are

         12  satisfied with these secondary --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE:

         14  Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have been

         16  doing this for years?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: We

         18  have been doing it for many years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What about the

         20  reduction in overtime, and will that affect the

         21  sanitation mechanics?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: The

         23  overtime reduction isn't geared toward the

         24  mechanics. Support operations is a large operation,

         25  the mechanics are a part of it.
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          2                 What we are going to do is we are

          3  going to chart some of our supervisors rather than

          4  work them on overtime, and we don't think that will

          5  have any impact.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          7                 We, some months ago, if you recall, I

          8  don't recall whether it was with you or your

          9  predecessor, we discussed implementing weekly

         10  recycling, only to be told there was a problem with

         11  equipment, you didn't have enough equipment, and

         12  that the manufacturer, the only manufacturer of the

         13  Sanitation trucks was one that we had problems with

         14  for the simple reason that some of the equipment had

         15  broken down and the Office of Procurement would not

         16  let you purchase from them, and that we were seeking

         17  to resolve that issue plus the fact that you were

         18  looking for another manufacturer to submit a

         19  prototype and that prototype is supposed to be ready

         20  in January for you to look at to determine whether

         21  or not you would be able to use that other

         22  manufacturer.

         23                 Could you fill me in on what happened

         24  with the January sanitation truck prototype?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MICHELS: You are
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          2  exactly correct. When we sat down and talked about

          3  the weekly recycling, at that point in time we did

          4  have a problem.

          5                 We did do a pilot with another

          6  manufacturer's truck that met our satisfaction. We

          7  put an announcement in the City Record and other

          8  trade publications and just last Friday received a

          9  bid by a company who won the bid, a company by the

         10  name of Mack. The bid was for 300 trucks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mack trucks?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Mack

         13  trucks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: With

         16  an option to buy an additional 300, for a total of

         17  600 trucks.

         18                 We expect that first 300 order, the

         19  beginning of that first 300 order, should be coming

         20  in in about six months.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So this is based

         22  upon a prototype that you have seen and tested?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         24  have seen it, we have tested it, it has worked to

         25  our satisfaction, it has exceeded our expectations.
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          2  We are very happy with the truck. They were the low

          3  bidder, so now that we have them, the money is in

          4  the capital budget, so we are moving forward now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You know, the

          6  other question I always have, and it was always

          7  asked before, as to whether or not any of these

          8  trucks will be capable of using alternative fuels

          9  rather than diesel. Are we still stuck with diesel

         10  again?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: All

         12  of these trucks are diesel.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: What

         14  we continue to do, as we have testified before we

         15  are in the forefront of heavy duty CNG vehicles, we

         16  will probably, as the engine technology continues to

         17  change in this order, which we haven't had new

         18  trucks come in for awhile, we will probably have

         19  maybe five engines from the new technology put into

         20  these vehicles so we can put them on the street and

         21  test them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That will be

         23  CNG?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The answer I get
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          2  as to why you don't get more CNG is because you

          3  don't have enough stations to pump CNG into the

          4  trucks, and you need them say for snow removal, you

          5  can't afford to take the trucks off line in order to

          6  go to the stations to get more CNGs; is that the

          7  reason?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE:

          9  Well, that's the majority of the reason.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They are

         11  powerful enough to remove the snow.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: And

         13  in a type of operation that we have, we need

         14  continual fueling, and there is I think five or six

         15  stations throughout the City that have the ability

         16  to fuel a large collection truck with a plough on

         17  it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because the main

         19  culprit, as far as I have been able to tell from

         20  experts, for the increase in asthma in this City is

         21  the diesel fumes and the children. There are other

         22  factors but diesel is something we have to

         23  dramatically reduce.

         24                 Okay, my last question for you, State

         25  and local environmental officials informed the City
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          2  that tiny sea termites or marine borers, as they are

          3  called, are destroying the piers and other

          4  structures in the water in New York City. The marine

          5  borers feed on the wood, and if left untreated may

          6  turn many structures into sawdust.

          7                 Recent studies have shown that their

          8  population is growing by eight percent a year in New

          9  York City harbor due to cleaner discharges from

         10  sewer treatment plants.

         11                 As a result of our success of the

         12  sewer treatment plants, we now have a parasite which

         13  is causing a problem to our waterfront properties

         14  and piers, and I don't think we have been affected

         15  by the Zebra Mussels yet down here, that is another

         16  problem.

         17                 How are the marine borers affecting

         18  the Department's marine transfer stations and other

         19  sanitation equipment?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

         21  think this is one program that sanitation -- not the

         22  only one of Sanitation that has been out front but

         23  certainly one of them -- but we have been doing this

         24  and recognize this problem for years, probably ten

         25  years at least, and have been repairing the marine
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          2  transfer stations around the City.

          3                 So we have been working with this, as

          4  I mentioned, for a long, long time --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How do you

          6  combat it? Are you putting a different type of wood

          7  or plastic in there instead of --

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Well,

          9  they put new pilings in and then they wrap the

         10  pilings with some type of materials that the borers

         11  can't bore through and protect the wood pilings. And

         12  there is money in the capital budget and has been

         13  for a number of years.

         14                 In the current year there is $6

         15  million in contracts that are going out for marine

         16  borers, and in the four-year plan for Fiscal Year

         17  '03, we have -- up to Fiscal Year '03 we have $27

         18  million in the budget for this. And over ten years

         19  we will have a total of $76 million to address this

         20  problem.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you give me

         22  a list of the sites which are currently under repair

         23  and scheduled for repair?

         24                 I don't think the public really

         25  understands, knows this problem at all. They don't
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          2  realize that we have a situation where unless we do

          3  something we are going to lose some of our pilings

          4  and piers.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: I

          6  will provide you with a site of those stations that

          7  were already done, and those that are scheduled to

          8  be done.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, this is

         10  extremely important. I am glad you are on top of it.

         11  I am glad you have taken the lead in it.

         12                 Commissioner, once again, thank you

         13  very much, and everybody who is here. We appreciate

         14  you being here. This is the end. We look forward to

         15  looking into other hearings on other issues of solid

         16  waste management. There is obviously one going to be

         17  coming up.

         18                 We are going to have public hearings

         19  after this, and we are going to be listening to the

         20  public testimony, but I want to thank you very much

         21  for your cooperation and we look forward to

         22  continuing. We appreciate it.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Thank

         24  you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.)
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